
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
   

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, March 26, 2013 
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 March 19, 2013 
 

   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
    
   Auditor 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0104-101, Dept. 000   
Central Services 
b. Microsoft Master Services Agreement w/Microsoft Corporation 
Commissioners 
c. Centennial Proclamation for Florence Stanley  
d. Contract Amendment w/Design West Architects for District Court Remodel Services  
Facilities 
e. Copier Lease w/Ricoh 
Horticultural Pest and Disease Board  
f. Appointment of J Lunden to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease Board    
g. Appointment of D Murray to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease Board 
h. Appointment of A denHoed to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease Board 
Human Services 
i. Grant Agreement w/Genesis Housing Services for Construction of Housing Development 
j. Amended Agreement w/City of Richland for Construction Extension  
Juvenile 
k. Contract w/K Moreno for Indigent Defense 
Office of Public Defense 
l. District Court Public Defense Contract Amendment w/R Swinburnson 
Parks 
m. Contract w/Dayco, Inc. for Wood Stove Installation 
Personnel 
n. April Employee of the Month Appointment  
o. Certificate of Appreciation for R Petersen to the Benton County Civil Service Commission 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Text Box
to view items in detail, please click on highlighted area

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
March 26, 2013 
Page 2 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

p. Appointment of J Petersen to the Benton County Civil Service Commission Board   
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137  

   Public Works 
r. Funding of the Red Mountain Interchange Project 
s. Purchase Authorization from 3M for Traffic Sign Materials 
t. Approval of Annual Certification for Traffic Enforcement & Fish Passage Barrier Removal  
u. Order & Agreement for Nonexclusive Franchise for BC Water Company, LLC 
v. Interlocal Agreement w/City of Benton City for Use of Solid Waste Brush Bandit 
w. Interlocal Agreement w/City of Prosser for Use of Solid Waste Brush Bandit 
Sheriff 
x. Purchase Agreement w/911 Supply Inc. for Employee Uniforms 
y. Authorization to Pay Net Transcripts, Inc. 
z. Purchase Agreement w/Bob Barker Inc. for Inmate Supplies 
aa. Approval of Application for Use of Training Center w/United Way of Benton & Franklin 

Counties 
bb. Purchase Agreement w/Interline Brands Inc. for Jail Chemical Supplies 
cc. Purchase Agreement  w/Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Inc. for Paper & Glove Supplies 
dd. Purchase Agreement w/Blumenthal Uniforms & Equipment Co, Inc. for Employee Uniforms 
 
Public Hearing 
 
Continued ~ Appeal of Environmental Determination ~ M Shuttleworth 
 
Red Mountain Master Site Plan ~ M Shuttleworth 
 
Ordinance Amendment BCC 7.16.140, Outdoor Concerts ~ R Brown 
 
Scheduled Business 
 
Interlocal Agreement Update on Aging and Long Term Care ~ L Brown 
 
Department of Energy Law Enforcement Contract ~ Captain Vannoy 
 
Building Department Permit Management System Contract ~ S Brown    
 
Fairgrounds Restroom Discussion ~ D. Docken 
 
Tax Title Property Discussion ~ K Mercer 
 

  Unscheduled Visitors 
   Board Assignment Update 
 
   Executive Session 
    

Potential Litigation ~ R Brown & D Sparks    

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, March 19, 2013, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner James Beaver  
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA 
Ryan Brown; Treasurer Duane Davidson; Erhiza Rivera and Nick Kooiker, Treasurer’s Office;  
Bob Woody, Central Services; Jacki Lahtinen, District Court; Clerk Josie Delvin; RJ Lott, 
Planning; Teri Holmes, Central Services; Stuart Holmes, Auditor’s Office; Robert Heard, Central 
Services.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of February 27, 2013 were approved.   
The Minutes of March 12, 2013 were approved.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “t”. 
Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Animal Control 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
Clerk 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106 
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0146-101, Dept. 000 
d. Authorization of Two Additional Cash Drawers 

Commissioners 
e. Purchase Authorization for Two Chevrolet Impalas From Bud Clary Chevrolet 
f. Letter of Congratulations to Washington Department of Ecology 

District Court 
g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111 



 - 2 - 

h. Copier Lease Agreement w/Xerox Corporation 
Facilities 

i. Notice of Substantial Completion for Justice Center TI Project  
Fairgrounds  

j. Contract with Stratton Surveying & Mapping, PC 
Juvenile 

k. Criminal Defense Panel Attorney Contract Amendment w/S Henwood  
l. Criminal Defense Panel Attorney Contract w/D Anderson  
m. Civil Defense Panel Attorney Contract w/J Paulsen   
n. Civil Defense Panel Attorney Contract w/D Campbell  
o. Contract Award to Senske Lawn & Tree Care for Turf Weed Application 

Personnel 
p. Denial of County Claim CC2013-02    
q. Training Contract w/C Poulsen 

Prosecuting Attorney 
r. Agreement with DeAtley Crushing Company 

Public Works 
s. Authorization to Proceed w/Bid Process for Purchase of Two Side Cast Brooms 

Sheriff 
t. Purchase Authorization for One Kawasaki Concours Police Motorcycle 

 
Public Hearing - Private Road Naming – PR 13-01 
 
RJ Lott said that Jim Parker submitted a request to name a private road that was not yet named or 
numbered located off Hansen Road and all properties affected by the proposed name were owned 
by Mr. Parker.  He said the most appropriate name was Salmon Run PR NW and the Planning 
Department recommended approval. 
 
As there was no one present for public testimony, the public hearing was closed for comment.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the road name change of the private road 
in Short Plat 3044 to Salmon Run PR NW with the condition the applicant had 30 days to pay 
the required sign fee for construction and placement of the private road sign.  If the fee was not 
paid within 30 days, the approval would be declared null and void.  Commissioner Delvin 
seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
Central Services – WI-FI Presentation 
 
Bob Woody said the current wireless network access that existed in the county buildings was not 
adequate for the needs today.  He said there were five separate networks that had to be 
maintained and it was difficult for corporate county users to access.  He said they wanted to find 
a solution to simplify the way it worked for corporate county users and guests, improve the 
wireless coverage to include all county buildings, ensure it was reliable and secure, and have the 
ability to expand easily and manage those expansions.  He said all these goals were considered 
when looking for a solution. 
 



 - 3 - 

Mr. Woody then showed a video presentation from Meraki Company (based out of the bay area) 
regarding a network system that worked and the complexity was taken care of by cloud based 
management tools.  He said this program would increase internet band width, increase 
connection between buildings, push connectivity to every area of county buildings, and would 
also increase desktop performance. 
 
Mr. Sparks said Meraki sent some demo products and Central Services tried to crash the internet 
with their product; additionally, he downloaded his agenda with Meraki and it was night and day 
compared to what the County currently had.  Mr. Sparks said the initial capital investment was 
$60,000 for purchase of equipment and then it operated on a three-year lease at approximately 
$5,000 to $6,000 a year for the software.  He said it fit the current IT plan and Central Services 
did an excellent job of researching this and they were now ready to go forward with an RFP.   
 
The Board agreed to move forward on the RFP process.   
 
ER&R Vehicle Policy 
 
Steve Becken presented the updated proposed ER&R Vehicle policy and said that Loretta Smith 
Kelty and Dan Mack had worked primarily on the policy, and Larry Moser had worked on the 
rental rates.  He said the original policy was done in 1990 and vehicle replacement was based on 
100,000 miles and 5 years old.  He said highlights for the new policy were depreciation of 7 
years, 100,000 miles or 10 years old or determination by ER&R that the vehicle was not safe to 
drive.  He said the departments would fund the vehicle and in 10 years would have money to buy 
a new one.  He said that all vehicles would be maintained at the shop at 4,000 mile intervals and 
rental rates would actually depend on maintenance costs through the years.  Additionally, all 
vehicles would be fleet white, except large road maintenance vehicles. 
 
Commissioner Delvin asked if the policy was sent out to other elected officials.  Ms. Smith Kelty 
said she had been talking individually with departments to find out what was needed but she had 
not sent out the policy.  Commissioner Delvin thought maybe it should go to elected officials for 
their comments and the Board agreed.  Ms. Smith Kelty said she would email the policy out and 
bring it back for Board approval in a couple of weeks.   
 
MATRICS Interlocal Emergency Communication System  
 
Mr. Sparks said they had been working with the jurisdictions on a new interlocal for a study to 
design an implementation plan that worked towards regionalization of the emergency 
communications systems.  He presented a draft of that interlocal agreement and asked the Board 
if it wanted to move forward.   
 
Commissioner Delvin said he attended a meeting with the three city managers and Franklin 
County and had a good conversation and there was a new comfort level that would allow the 
process to continue without committing to a regionalization.  He said at the end of the process 
they would be able to decide if the merger made sense and if they wanted to proceed ahead.   
 



 - 4 - 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved that the Commissioners accept the draft interlocal 
agreement (MATRICS) and allow David Sparks and Loretta Smith Kelty to proceed and work 
with the parties for a final agreement.  Commissioner Beaver seconded.   
 
Discussion 
 
Commissioner Beaver said it appeared to be a boiler plate agreement, however, the part that 
disturbed him was on page 2 section 6 (Objectives/Criteria)  that was removed that would 
include how Benton County/Kennewick/Richland would be compensated or reimbursed for their 
current capital outlay or infrastructure.  He said that translated to him as an attempt to have 
people join this process that were not invested in it and would be putting Benton County 
politically in a position that he didn’t want to be in.  He said it appeared that Benton County 
owned what it owned but that others were trying to get involved.   
 
Commissioner Delvin said he wanted to see this process continue so they could address all the 
issues (who was paying for what, who was a partner, who would pay for contractual services).  
He said he was fine with this draft agreement and his expectations were that the group would 
come to the Board to talk about where they were in the process.  
 
Chairman Small agreed that Commissioner Beaver had some valid points about being concerned 
about the future.  He said he thought the contract read that it was working towards a 
regionalization and the cost allocation would include a cost benefit analysis.  He felt the 
agreement would work toward finding out if this was a good idea and it was the right direction to 
go.   
 
Commissioner Beaver commented that if this was such a great idea, why was it a problem 
keeping in the language that would make Benton County more comfortable.  He said it appeared 
to be a game to get the County to pay more money.   
 
Upon vote, the motion carried with Commissioner Beaver opposing.   
 
Unscheduled Visitors 
 
Duane Davidson presented a letter to the legislators from Benton County elected officials urging 
the State not to cut State Shared Revenues.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve signing the letter.  Commissioner Delvin 
seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.  
 
Mr. Davidson also updated the Board on the following legislation:   
 
Administrative Refund Levy - (Senator Brown sponsored for the Treasurer’s Association and 
supported by WACO and WSAC) made it through the Senate and was now sitting in House 
Finance.  He said if it was delayed further he might ask for further support from the 
Commissioners.   
 



 - 5 - 

Treasurer Foreclosure Fees bill - he said it would assist in keeping the Treasurer’s O & M funded 
(there were two FTE’s in that fund).  He said it passed the House and was now in Government 
Ops Committee.   
 
He said there were originally six bills that would allow for payment of property taxes on 
installment basis and HB 1004 was still alive.  He said it cut into penalties and interests and there 
were some ramifications to the County but he was asking the Board to support that bill.   
 
Andy Miller via/videoconference said he wanted to update the Board on his plans to apply to the 
Dept. of Justice for a justice and mental health corroboration grant that required corroboration 
with a governmental agency and mental health treatment agency.  He said they would be 
applying in conjunction with Lourdes Counseling Center and received letters of support from 
NAMI, Ed Thornbrugh, Human Services, Benton-Franklin Health Alliance, Kennewick Police, 
Benton County Sheriff, W. Richland Police Department, Richland Police Department, Superior 
Court and District Court.  He said this would be a planning grant to get all treatments agencies, 
law enforcement, and court to work on these issues and try to come up with a common goal.  He 
said different options could be a triage program or pre-charge diversion program, mental health 
court, treatment in the jail, follow up treatment, and/or probation treatment were all possibilities.  
He said he talked to David and Loretta and was also keeping the cities involved.  He said he 
knew the Board was always appropriately concerned about sustainability and there was an 
implementation grant after the planning grant.  He said he planned to apply unless there were 
some concerns and would continue to keep the Board apprised through David Sparks and Loretta 
Smith Kelty.   
 
Commissioner Delvin said he believed the issues should be addressed and he was in favor of 
moving forward.  The Board agreed.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Beaver said he attended the Park Board meeting (Hank Sauer retired after 20 
years) and the Council of Government meeting (interviewed an individual for executive director 
position).  He said he planned to attend the ECA conference in DC and asked the Board for 
approval (he said it was fully reimbursed for two individuals from the County).   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the travel for Commissioner Beaver.  
Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried with Commissioner Beaver 
abstaining.   
 
Commissioner Delvin said he attended the Ben Franklin Transit meeting, as well as another 
water meeting in Yakima with the Yakima Basin group (they have a plan in place but it was a 
matter of getting funding).  He said he would be visiting Olympia in April for WACO to attend 
events and said if there was anything the Board wanted to talk about to let him know.  There was 
a SARC meeting on March 27 asking for community members and he was going to volunteer (he 
served on crime victim advocate committee for the State).  The Board agreed.  Additionally, he 
said the NACO western meeting was coming in May and he would pay his cost to get down there 
if the County would pay the hotel ($115/night and registration fee).   



 - 6 - 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve paying for hotel and registration at the 
NACO western meeting.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion carried with 
Commissioner Delvin abstaining. 
 
Additionally, Commissioner Delvin talked about the Board having a budget presentation in April 
and that he would talk with Keith Mercer about what he wanted to see.  He said he also 
forwarded an email to the Sheriff about witnessing shooting on a private road (Owen Road) and 
they said they would look into it and also see about getting a work crew to clean up trash.  
 
Chairman Small said he also attended the Park Board meeting, the Prosser Leadership meeting 
(and thanked everyone for their presentations), and the town hall meeting that started in Richland 
and moved to West Richland and ended up in Kennewick.   
 
The Board recessed, reconvening at 10:19 a.m.  
 
Executive Session 
 
The Board went into executive session at 10:19 a.m. for up to 10 minutes to discuss the 
performance of a public employee.  Also present were Melina Wenner, Loretta Smith Kelty, and 
David Sparks.  The Board came out at 10:37 a.m. and Mr. Sparks said that no decisions were 
made.   
 
The Board recessed, reconvening at 1:30 p.m. 
 
Continued Public Hearing – Appeal of Environmental Determination   
 
Mike Shuttleworth said the public hearing was continued for deliberation by the Board.  
Additionally, he asked the members if they had engaged in any ex parte communication since the 
last disclosure and they all said they had no new communication.  The Board members then 
reiterated their previous disclosure.  Commissioner Beaver said he previously talked to Dr. Olsen 
and Ryan Brown.  Commissioner Delvin said he read an email from Dr. Olsen and had 
discussions with Ryan Brown.  Chairman Small said he talked with Dr. Olsen twice as disclosed 
before.   
 
Chairman Small said he had questions for Mr. Wkoff and reminded him that his oath continued. 
He asked Mr. Wykoff how many acres his wells pumped.  Mr. Wykoff said there were two wells 
in the Wanapum, one was called the Wykoff well and the other was the DNR well.  He said they 
had a lease with DNR for supplemental water purposes and both wells covered several hundred 
acres in supplemental water use, although he wasn’t exact and it might be more than hundreds. 
He said the water from DNR was also used by Mr. Jim Willard in supplemental water years.  He 
said he believed there were additional wells in the Wanapum that were used for supplemental 
purposes (Lewis and Munich families that were both a mile away from the DNR well).   
 
It was asked if there were any new comments received and entered into the record.  Mr. 
Shuttleworth presented two letters submitted to the Planning Department.  One from Suzanne 
Skinner (Exhibit aa) and one from Gary Finn (Exhibit bb).   



 - 7 - 

Chairman Small then stated the public input portion was closed for further public testimony. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to uphold the determination of significance for EA 
12-14.  Commissioner Delvin seconded.   
 
Discussion 
 
Commissioner Delvin said he did not see what was presented as significant.  He said the main 
issue seemed to be the aquifer with one side with expert analysis.  The other side showed DNR 
had concerns but nothing to show.  He said the Dept. of Ecology only had communication 
between them on the definition.  He said he was not convinced there was anything proven to be 
significant and that all other concerns would be addressed in the permitting process.  He said if it 
came down to the water, it was not the County’s responsibility but it should be the Dept. of 
Ecology’s responsibility to quantify the water. He said if they had an issue with the well, they 
should take action and it was not the County’s duty to protect the water rights, it was the State’s 
duty to protect water rights.  He reiterated that nothing that was significant was proven to him 
more than a moderate adverse impact on environmental quality.   
 
Commissioner Beaver read the letter from the Center for Environmental Law (Suzanne Skinner, 
Exhibit “aa”, paragraph 3): “Where warranted, a county may and should deny a land use 
application on environmental grounds” illustrated his position.  He said it suggested to him, 
along with the testimony received that this project would create a significant impact and the 
evidence in front of them would support the Planning Manager’s decision and so he wanted to 
reaffirm the Planning Manager’s decision as he saw it.  He said Mr. Shuttleworth has spent years 
looking at these types of issues and had made a determination of significance.   
 
Chairman Small said in his determination of what was truly defined as significant he looked at 
the totality of all things submitted.  There was testimony that someone was deciding whether to 
take a shower or water their garden at one end and the other end a farmer dealing with irrigation.  
He said that everything he read referenced the drop in water and the concern about that.  He said 
he was not saying no to someone’s dream of putting in a cattle yard but the main issue was 
regarding the EIS and he believed it was a case by case study and he did not believe they were 
setting a precedent on this issue.   
 
Commissioner Delvin said his decision had nothing to do with Mr. Shuttleworth since he himself 
said he was not a hydrologist or water expert person and there were reports out there.  He said 
the people who spoke about their wells were not in the same aquifer and he was just saying the 
County should not decide on the water and that it was the State’s job.  The County should not be 
making the determination because it did not have the expertise.  Additionally, the Dept. of 
Ecology had not done a good job and they had fought this issue at the State about whose role it 
was.   
 
Chairman Small requested a recess to confer with the attorney.   
 
The Board recessed, reconvening at 1:55 p.m. 
 



 - 8 - 

Chairman Small said he asked Mr. Brown if the Board would be setting any sort of precedent 
either way it was decided.    
 
Upon vote, the motion carried with Commissioner Delvin opposing.  
 
The Board restated it was affirming the determination of significance and requested Mr. 
Shuttleworth prepare findings and conclusions.  Mr. Shuttleworth said they normally work with a 
Commissioner on the findings and Chairman Small said he could do that.   
 
The public hearing was continued to 9:00 a.m. on March 26, 2013 to discuss the proposed 
findings and conclusions of law.   
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 03/08/2013 
Warrant #: 76303-76441 
Warrant #: 76505-76635 
Total all funds: $375,187.02 
 
Check Date:  03/12/2013 
Procurement Cards #: 0312 
Total all funds: $124,136.87 
 
Check Date: 03/15/2013 
Warrant #: 235425-235441 
Direct Deposit #: 82683-82878 
Total all funds: $104,265.87 
 
Check Date: 03/15/2013 
Taxes #: 10113034 
Total all funds: $34,390.69 
 
Check Date: 03/15/2013 
Warrant #: 76796-76938 
Total all funds: $1,624,722.93 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2013-219: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
2013-220: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106 
2013-221: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0146-101, Dept. 000 
2013-222: Authorization of Two Additional Cash Drawers 
2013-223: Purchase Authorization for Two Chevrolet Impalas From Bud Clary Chevrolet 
2013-224: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111 



 - 9 - 

2013-225: Copier Lease Agreement w/Xerox Corporation 
2013-226: Notice of Substantial Completion for Justice Center TI Project  
2013-227: Contract with Stratton Surveying & Mapping, PC 
2013-228: Criminal Defense Panel Attorney Contract Amendment w/S Henwood  
2013-229: Criminal Defense Panel Attorney Contract w/D Anderson  
2013-230: Civil Defense Panel Attorney Contract w/J Paulsen   
2013-231: Civil Defense Panel Attorney Contract w/D Campbell   
2013-232: Contract Award to Senske Lawn & Tree Care for Turf Weed Application 
2013-233: Denial of County Claim CC 2013-02    
2013-234: Training Contract w/C Poulsen 
2013-235: Agreement with DeAtley Crushing Company 
2013-236: Authorization to Proceed w/Bid Process for Purchase of Two Side Cast Brooms 
2013-237: Purchase Authorization for One Kawasaki Concours Police Motorcycle 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 2:00 
p.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY POLICY, RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN VETERANS 
ASSISTANCE FUND NUMBER 0104101. 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds shall be transferred as outlined in 
Exhibit "A," attached hereto. 

Dated this ____ day of---------' 20 __ . 

Attest=--~--------------
Cierk of the Board 

Chairman of the Board 

Member 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington 

Prepared by P. Powell 

mf
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0104-101, Dept. 000



BENTON COUNTY 
LINE ITEM TRANSFER 

BUDGET: 2013-14 -------------------
DEPARTMENT: veterans -------------------FUND NUMBER: 0 I 0410 I 

FUND NAME:-------------------

TRANSFER FROM: 1TRANSFER TO: 
LINE LINE LINE LINE ITEM 

BASE SUB ITEM ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB ITEM NAME 
6 digit 4digit 6 digit 4digit 

565.203 3140 supplies food 300.00 565.203 3201 Vehicle Fuel 

TOTAL $ 300.00 TOTAL 

PI Powell 3/13/ 13 
Prepared By DATE AUDITOR'S USE ONLY: I 

Keyed : 

Date: 

Approved By Initials: 

AMOUNT 

300.00 

$ 300.00 



mf
Text Box
b. Microsoft Master Services Agreement w/Microsoft Corporation







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 03/26/13  
Subject:               Stanley 

Proclamation  
Prepared by:       Marilu Flores  
Reviewed by: LSK  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  XXX  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda            

XXX  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

  
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Commissioners’ Office was contacted by Chief Whealan from Benton County Fire Protection District #4 
in regards to Florence Stanley turning 100 years on April 17th.  Chief Whealan informed our office that there 
will be a celebration being planned on April 13 for Ms. Stanley and asked if our office would be willing to do a 
proclamation for Ms. Stanley to be presented to her on that date.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
   
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Commissioners process a proclamation for Florence Stanley in honor & congratulate her on her 
100th birthday.   
 
 
 
 
 

mf
Text Box
c. Centennial Proclamation for Florence Stanley



 
 

PROCLAMATION 

  
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
 

WHEREAS, Florence Stanley of West Richland has lived through a century of innovation unlike 
any other generation before her has ever experienced; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Stanley was born in Jenner, Alberta on 17 April 1913; the oldest of six children 
in a farming family that had no means of food refrigeration, relied on a horse-and-buggy for 
transportation, was educated in a one-room schoolhouse, and had no concept of television; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Stanley moved to Oregon in 1926; was married to Loyd Stanley, her husband of 
60 years, in 1933; and is mother to two daughters and a son; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Stanley has been a fixture in the West Richland senior community where her 
baking and storytelling are appreciated by all, and from where many of the sweaters and 
afghans she knits and crochets are sent around the world to victims of catastrophes; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, we, the Benton County Board of Commissioners, honor and congratulate 
 

Florence Stanley 
 
on the occasion of her 100th birthday; whereupon we thank her for all of her contributions, and 
we join her and the community in celebrating her life, her talents, and her accomplishments. 
 
 
Dated this  ___________ day of ___________________ , 2013. 
 
 
 ________________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
 ________________________________                
 Member 
 
 
 ________________________________                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
 
 
Attest....................................................... 

         Clerk of the Board 
 



mf
Text Box
d. Contract Amendment w/Design West Architects for District Court Remodel Services









mf
Text Box
e. Copier Lease w/Ricoh









 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date:   3/26/13 

Subject:           Board appt  

Prepared by:   Frank Wolf  

Reviewed by:  Frank Wolf  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  __X__  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   _____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda     __X__  

Public Hearing     _____  

1st Discussion     _____ 

2nd Discussion     _____ 

Other      _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Horticultural Pest and Disease Board currently has two vacant positions. And the 
terms of two board members, Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden, on the Horticultural Pest 
and Disease Board will expire on March 31, 2013. 
 
 

SUMMARY 

 
David Murray has declared a willingness and desire to be appointed to the Horticultural 
Pest and Disease Board. And both Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden have declared a 
willingness and desire to be reappointed to the Horticultural Pest and Disease Board. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Horticultural Pest and Disease Board recommends the Board of County 
Commissioners appoint David Murray and reappoint Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden to 
the Horticultural Pest and Disease Board for two year terms. 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Ensure growers in Benton County have unrestricted trade in national and international 
markets. 
 

 

MOTION 
 
Appoint David Murray and reappoint Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden to the Horticultural 
Pest and Disease Board for two year terms. 
 

mf
Text Box
f. Appointment of J Lunden to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease Board



cc:  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

         
Member 

 

Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 

 Clerk of the Board      Washington 

 

 

 
 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTING JEFF LUNDEN TO THE BENTON COUNTY 

HORTICULTURAL PEST AND DISEASE BOARD 

 

 

WHEREAS, Jeff Lunden has declared a willingness and a desire to be reappointed to the 

Board NOW THEREFORE, 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 

Washington hereby reappoints Jeff Lunden, 50102 N Whan Road Benton City, WA 

99320, to the Horticultural Pest and Disease Board, said two year term ending March 31, 

2015. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date:   3/26/13 

Subject:           Board appt  

Prepared by:   Frank Wolf  

Reviewed by:  Frank Wolf  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  __X__  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   _____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda     __X__  

Public Hearing     _____  

1st Discussion     _____ 

2nd Discussion     _____ 

Other      _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Horticultural Pest and Disease Board currently has two vacant positions. And the 
terms of two board members, Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden, on the Horticultural Pest 
and Disease Board will expire on March 31, 2013. 
 
 

SUMMARY 

 
David Murray has declared a willingness and desire to be appointed to the Horticultural 
Pest and Disease Board. And both Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden have declared a 
willingness and desire to be reappointed to the Horticultural Pest and Disease Board. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Horticultural Pest and Disease Board recommends the Board of County 
Commissioners appoint David Murray and reappoint Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden to 
the Horticultural Pest and Disease Board for two year terms. 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Ensure growers in Benton County have unrestricted trade in national and international 
markets. 
 

 

MOTION 
 
Appoint David Murray and reappoint Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden to the Horticultural 
Pest and Disease Board for two year terms. 
 

mf
Text Box
g. Appointment of D Murray to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease Board



cc:  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

         
Member 

 

Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 

 Clerk of the Board      Washington 

 

 

 
 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTING DAVID MURRAY TO THE BENTON 

COUNTY HORTICULTURAL PEST AND DISEASE BOARD 

 

 

WHEREAS, David Murray has declared a willingness and a desire to be appointed to the 

Board; NOW THEREFORE, 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 

Washington hereby appoints David Murray, 2311 Michael Avenue Richland, WA 99352, 

to the Horticultural Pest and Disease Board, said two year term ending March 31, 2015. 
 



 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date:   3/26/13 

Subject:           Board appt  

Prepared by:   Frank Wolf  

Reviewed by:  Frank Wolf  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  __X__  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   _____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda     __X__  

Public Hearing     _____  

1st Discussion     _____ 

2nd Discussion     _____ 

Other      _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Horticultural Pest and Disease Board currently has two vacant positions. And the 
terms of two board members, Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden, on the Horticultural Pest 
and Disease Board will expire on March 31, 2013. 
 
 

SUMMARY 

 
David Murray has declared a willingness and desire to be appointed to the Horticultural 
Pest and Disease Board. And both Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden have declared a 
willingness and desire to be reappointed to the Horticultural Pest and Disease Board. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Horticultural Pest and Disease Board recommends the Board of County 
Commissioners appoint David Murray and reappoint Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden to 
the Horticultural Pest and Disease Board for two year terms. 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Ensure growers in Benton County have unrestricted trade in national and international 
markets. 
 

 

MOTION 
 
Appoint David Murray and reappoint Archie den Hoed and Jeff Lunden to the Horticultural 
Pest and Disease Board for two year terms. 
 

mf
Text Box
h. Appointment of A denHoed to the Benton County Horticultural Pest & Disease Board



cc:  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

         
Member 

 

Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 

 Clerk of the Board      Washington 

 

 

 
 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTING ARCHIE den HOED TO THE BENTON 

COUNTY HORTICULTURAL PEST AND DISEASE BOARD 

 

 

WHEREAS, Archie den Hoed has declared a willingness and a desire to be reappointed 

to the Board NOW THEREFORE, 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 

Washington hereby reappoints Archie den Hoed, 63801 N Griffin Road Grandview, WA 

98930, to the Horticultural Pest and Disease Board, said two year term ending March 31, 

2015. 



mf
Text Box
i. Grant Agreement w/Genesis Housing Services for Construction of Housing Development







mf
Text Box
j. Amended Agreement w/City of Richland for Construction Extension











mf
Text Box
k. Contract w/K Moreno for Indigent Defense









mf
Text Box
l. District Court Public Defense Contract Amendment w/R Swinburnson







Orig: Commissioners   Small   
cc: Auditor; R. Ozuna; AJF; Contract Management; Dayco, Inc.  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND DAYCO, INC. 
FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF A WOOD STOVE FOR THE PARK 
RANGERS RESIDENCE LOCATED AT HORN RAPIDS PARK 
 
WHEREAS, rent is collected each month from the caretaker who lives at the residence located at Horn 
Rapids Park, with said monies deposited into the Park Development Fund; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Park’s Department tries to invest that approximate amount of money back into the 
residence portion of the park, such as upgrading the fencing around the residence and re-doing some of 
the flooring; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Park’s Department began looking for alternative heating options, specifically a wood 
stove or pellet stove to install in the residence; and  
 
WHEREAS, proposals were solicited and received from the following:  
 
• Dayco, Inc., Kennewick, WA - $5,156.16 including W.S.S.T. 
• Bruce Heating & Air Conditioning, Kennewick, WA - $5,249.00 plus W.S.S.T.   
• Fire & Water, Richland, WA - $4,459.47 including W.S.S.T.  
 
WHEREAS, though Fire & Water had the lowest bid, their quote did not include prevailing wages as 
required; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Sustainable Development Manager reviewed the quotes and determined that Dayco, 
Inc. was the lowest responsible bidder and recommend the Board enter into a contract with Dayco, Inc. 
for a contract amount not to exceed $5,156.16 including WSST; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
agrees with the recommendation and awards the purchase and installation of a wood stove for the 
residence located at Horn Rapids Park to Dayco, Inc. for a contract amount of $5,156.16 including 
WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the service 
agreement attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, said contract shall commence upon signature of both parties and shall 
terminate on June 30, 2013.   
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
     

                                          
           
 
 

mf
Text Box
m. Contract w/Dayco, Inc. for Wood Stove Installation





 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
Meeting Date: 3/26/13 
Subject:  Employee of the Month  
Prepared by: L. Wingfield   
        

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract             
Pass Resolution            
Pass Ordinance              
Pass Motion              
Other     X         

 
 
Consent Agenda      X     
Public Hearing              
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion              
Other              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Approval of Employee of the Month for April 2013. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Same as above.   
 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Request signatures approving Employee of the Month for April 2013. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact. 
 
 
 
 

mf
Text Box
n. April Employee of the Month Appointment



 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
Meeting Date: 3/26/13 
Subject:  Retirement 

Certification  
Prepared by: S. Ratliff   
        

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract             
Pass Resolution            
Pass Ordinance              
Pass Motion              
Other     X         

 
Consent Agenda      X     
Public Hearing              
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion              
Other              

 
 

 
  

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Requesting signatures for a Retirement Certificate for Civil Service Commissioner Richard L. Petersen. He 
has served on our Board for 7.5 years.   
 
SUMMARY 
 
Same as above.   
 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Request signatures for a Retirement Certificate for Civil Service Commissioner Richard L. Petersen 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact. 
 
 
 
 

mf
Text Box
o. Certificate of Appreciation for R Petersen to the Benton County Civil Service Commission





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:      03/26/13        
Subject:               Civil Service 

Commission 
Prepared by:       L. Wingfield  
Reviewed by: M. Wenner  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  XXX  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            XXX  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Personnel Office was notified that there exists a vacancy to the Benton County Civil Service 
Commission Board due to resignation of Richard Petersen.  Ms. Julie Petersen has expressed a desire to 
be appointed for a term expiring on December 31, 2017.   
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
A vacancy on the Benton County Civil Service Commission exists and needs to be filled. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached resolution appointing Ms. Petersen to the Benton County Civil Service Commission. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
  

mf
Text Box
p. Appointment of J Petersen to the Benton County Civil Service Commission Board



cc: Civil Service Commission, Commissioner’s Office, Personnel  Wingfield 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro Tem  
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of  Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTING JULIE PETERSEN TO THE BENTON 
COUNTY CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION BOARD. 
 
WHEREAS, there has been a vacancy on the Civil Service Commission Board due to the 
resignation of Richard Petersen, 
 
WHEREAS, the position was posted on the County website and an application was 
submitted, 
  
WHEREAS, Julie Petersen has expressed an interest and willingness to be appointed to 
the vacant board position;  
 
WHEREAS, the Chairman of the Board of Benton County Civil Service Commission 
has sent a letter recommending Julie Petersen; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that Julie Petersen is hereby appointed by the Benton County Board 
of Commissioners to the Benton County Civil Service Commission Board, with said term 
expiring on December 31, 2017. 
 
 





 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
Meeting Date: 3-26-13 
Subject:  Line Item Transfer  
Prepared by: L. Wingfield   
        

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract             
Pass Resolution            
Pass Ordinance              
Pass Motion              
Other   X         

 
 
Consent Agenda  X     
Public Hearing              
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion              
Other              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
An error was made when entering Insurance Management Assessment totals for the 2013-2014 budget.  
Animal Control and Adult & Juvenile Drug Court totals were switched. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Same as above.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve line item transfer. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact. 
 
 
 
 

mf
Text Box
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, K. Mercer Prepared by: L. Wingfield

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 138 
TO DEPARTMENT NUMBER 137.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Current Expense Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 138 TRANSFER TO: Dept 137

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.213 4697 Insurance Management $898 554.301 4697 Insurance Management $1,197

512.232 4697 Insurance Management $299

TOTAL $1,197 TOTAL $1,197

Explanation: 

Prepared by: L. Wingfield  Date:  14-Mar-2013

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Error made when entering Insurance Management assessment totals.  Switched Animal Control and Adult & Juvenile Drug Court amounts in the 2013-
2014 budget.

Adult & Juvenile Drug Court 138

0000-101



mf
Text Box
r. Funding of the Red Mountain Interchange Project



mf
Text Box
s. Purchase Authorization from 3M for Traffic Sign Materials





mf
Text Box
t. Approval of Annual Certification for Traffic Enforcement & Fish Passage Barrier Removal













mf
Text Box
u. Order & Agreement for Nonexclusive Franchise for BC Water Company, LLC







mf
Text Box
v. Interlocal Agreement w/City of Benton City for Use of Solid Waste Brush Bandit











mf
Text Box
w. Interlocal Agreement w/City of Prosser for Use of Solid Waste Brush Bandit











mf
Text Box
x. Purchase Agreement w/911 Supply Inc. for Employee Uniforms







mf
Text Box
y. Authorization to Pay Net Transcripts, Inc.





mf
Text Box
z. Purchase Agreement w/Bob Barker Inc. for Inmate Supplies







mf
Text Box
aa. Approval of Application for Use of Training Center w/United Way





mf
Text Box
bb. Purchase Agreement w/Interline Brands Inc. for Jail Chemical Supplies







mf
Text Box
cc. Purchase Agreement w/Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Inc. for Paper & Glove Supplies







mf
Text Box
dd. Purchase Agreement w/Blumenthal Uniforms & Equipment Co, Inc. for Employee Uniforms







AGENDA ITEM 

MTG. DATE: March 26, 2013 
SUBJECT: Continued Hearing - Open 
Record Appeal for EA 12-14 
MEMO DATE: March 20, 2013 
Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson 
Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 

NEEDED 

Execute Contract  

Pass Resolution  

Pass Ordinance  

Pass Motion   

Other   X 

Consent Agenda  

Public Hearing        X 

1st Discussion  

2nd Discussion  

Other    

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Board of County Commissioners at their hearing on March 19, 2013 continued the Open Record 
Appeal Hearing for EA 12-14 - Matt and Debbie Driscoll.   After a motion from the Board upholding 
the Planning Manager’s decision to require an EIS for EA 12-14, the Board directed staff to work 
with the Board Chairman in preparing findings for their signature.  The meeting was continued until 
March 26, 2013 at 9:00 a.m. 
 
SUMMARY 

Attached to this agenda sheet are the proposed Findings and Hearing Decision for the Boards review 
and signature at their continued hearing on March 26, 2013.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Department recommends that the Board of County Commissioners sign the attached 
Findings and Hearing Decision. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT - None. 
 

MOTION  
That the Board approve the attached Findings and Hearing Decision and sign the document 
upholding the Planning Manager’s decision to require an EIS for EA 12-14. 

mf
Text Box
Continued ~ Appeal of Environmental Determination ~ M Shuttleworth



 
 

DECISION OF THE 
BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
OPEN RECORD  FINDINGS OF FACT 
APPEAL HEARING - EA 12-14 AND HEARING DECISION 
 
 
 

DECISION 

 
AN APPEAL of the Planning Manager’s Environmental Threshold Determination of Significance for EA 
12-14 is hereby denied.  The Environmental Checklist was submitted in conjunction with a 
Conditional Use Permit Application (CUP 12-01).   
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
The area covered by the proposal is generally described as that property located 
on a 324 acre parcel in the South Half of Section 19, Township 10 North, Range 25 East, W.M. 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS, an application for CUP 12-01/EA 12-14 was submitted on May 31, 2012 and was deemed 
a complete application on May 31, 2012; and, 
 
WHEREAS, those agencies affected by the application were notified on June 1, 2012; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Notice of Application was published on June 8, 2012 and mailed to surrounding 
property owners on June 7, 2012; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Notice of Application and Environmental Checklist were sent to affected agencies on 
June 5, 2012; and,  
 
WHEREAS, based on the information received from the Department of Ecology, Department of 
Natural Resources, the Benton County Dept. of Public Works, and the Yakama Nation along with 
surrounding property owners; the Planning Manager on July 11, 2012, requested that the applicant 
provide additional information; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on September 25, 2012, the Planning Manager issued a Finding of Need for additional 
processing time; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on October 1, 2012, the applicants submitted an Impairment Analysis and Declaration of 
Appropriation of Ground Water for Beneficial Use and Plan of Development completed by Darryll 
Olsen, Ph.D., Columbia-Snake River Irrigators Association (CSRIA) Principal Consultant and Thomas R. 
Buchholtz, P.E.; and, 



Findings of Fact and Hearing Decision 
Page 2 
 
 
WHEREAS, on October2, 2012, the Impairment Analysis documentation was forwarded to the Department of 
Ecology, the Yakama Nation, and the Washington State Department of Natural Resources; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on December 12, 2012, the Planning Manager determined that the proposal would likely 
have a significant impact on the environment and issued a Threshold Determination of Significance 
requiring that the Environmental Impact Statement be prepared; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on December 19, 2012, the Planning Manager revised the appeal date clarifying the 
Determination of Significance; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on January 2, 2013, the Planning Department received a written appeal from Matt and 
Debbie Driscoll; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on February 28, 2013, public notice procedures, pursuant to BCC 6.35.115(a)(2), were 
carried out including: publication of legal notices in the Tri-City Herald; notification to reviewing 
agencies and adjacent landowners; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Department record used for the basis of the Determination was forwarded 
to the Board of County Commissioners as Exhibit A along with the Agenda Sheet and Staff Memo, 
Exhibits B and C respectively on February 28, 2013; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners conducted an Open Record Hearing on March 12, 
2013 at 1:30 p.m. in the Commissioners Meeting Room, Third Floor, Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
99350; and 
 
WHEREAS, those exhibits received after February 28, 2013 labeled as Exhibits D through O were 
presented to the Board and the Applicant’s on March 12, 2013; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners at the Open Record Hearing on March 12, 2013 
received into evidence (Exhibits P-Z); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners continued the public hearing for the purpose of 
reviewing all testimony and documents submitted; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the public hearing was continued to 1:30 p.m. on March 19, 2013, in the Commissioners 
Meeting Room, Third Floor, Courthouse, Prosser WA 99350; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners at the continued Open Record Hearing on March 19, 
2013, received into evidence (Exhibits AA and BB); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners at the Open Record Hearing reviewed all testimony 
and public hearing exhibits that were received into evidence (Exhibits A-BB); and, 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners finds and concludes as 
follows and on the basis of these findings and conclusions votes to uphold the Planning Manager’s 
Determination of Significance and requirement that a Environmental Impact Statement be prepared 
for EA 12-14; and, 
 



Findings of Fact and Hearing Decision 
Page 3 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners desires to enter its written decision concerning this 
matter, 
 
 
 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

 
The Benton County Planning Department received a Conditional Use Permit Application and 
Environmental Checklist from Matt & Debbie Driscoll, to construct and operate a 4,000 head custom 
dairy heifer replacement feedlot on a 324 acre parcel in the South Half of Section 19, Township 10 
North, Range 25 East. W.M. 
 
Numerous comments were received from property owners, agencies and other entities asking that 
the applicant address issues such as odor, dust control, traffic, ground water and storm water 
runoff.  A significant number of the comments received expressed concern regarding the ground 
water usage of the proposed facility and its impacts on surrounding wells and the Wanapum Aquifer. 
 
Based on the comments received, the Planning Department requested additional information from 
the applicants regarding the impact the project would have on ground water wells in the 
surrounding area and also on the Wanapum Aquifer.  
 
The applicants on October 1, 2012, submitted an Impairment Analysis and Declaration of 
Appropriation of Ground Water for Beneficial Use and Plan of Development completed by Darryll 
Olsen, Ph.D., Columbia-Snake River Irrigators Association (CSRIA) Principal Consultant and Thomas 
R. Buchholtz, P.E.  The documentation prepared by Mr. Olsen, Ph.D. and Mr. Buchholtz, P.E. was 
then sent to those who commented on the Notice of Application.  The Planning Department received 
comments on the additional information submitted by the applicant.  A majority of those comments 
expressed concerns that the additional information did not adequately address the impacts the 
proposal would have on the Wanapum Aquifer and on surrounding water users that currently draw 
from that Aquifer. 
 
The Department of Ecology has denied several water right requests of similar withdraw levels as 
proposed by the applicants, because the proposed withdraws would impact the aquifer and other 
senior water right users in the area.  The reasons for the denials were because of the persistent 
decline of the Wanapum Aquifer from approximately 2 to nearly 5 feet per year and that the 
pumping costs of senior right holders appear to be approaching unreasonable levels. 
 
The applicant's submitted additional information provided that: 

"It is anticipated that after one year of pumping on the subject well, the DNR well 
(Washington State Department of Natural Resources well) would be impacted .3 foot to 
1 foot. This falls well below the magnitude that can be described as impairment. Any 
other wells yielding for this aquifer, but lying farther from the new well would be 
impacted even less. Additionally, any potential impacts, if any, to the Yakima River, 
would not be seen until long into the future, and as such for the analysis would not be 
considered impairment. When one considered all factors of casing, penetration depths, 
distances from other wells, and the relatively low withdrawal rate, the resulting potential 
impacts to the Yakima River along with other well and water right owners will be 
minimal. The magnitude of these potential impacts falls well below the magnitude that 
can be described as impairment as described in the statute.” 



Findings of Fact and Hearing Decision 
Page 4 
 
 
 
The Department of Ecology provided the following comments on the applicant’s additional 
information in their October 16, 2012 letter: 

"Ecology believes the data demonstrates that the Wanapum Aquifer in the project area is 
in a state of decline rather that a state of balance. The aquifer will continue to decline 
over time under current pumping pressures. The aquifer will decline at a faster rate if 
additional water is allowed to be withdrawn. As groundwater pumping continues, 
competing groundwater users will have to deepen wells, lower pumps, and deal with 
increased costs as groundwater declines persist over time. As such, an evaluation of well 
to well interference offers some beneficial information but leaves the County without 
sufficient decision making information as was requested." 
 

 
The applicant's additional information references a portion of a USGS study.  Several studies have 
been completed by the USGS on the Yakima River system and the movement of water in the 
system.  Others commented that more information was needed and referenced several other 
portions of the same study.  The USGS study does not look directly at the applicant's well and its 
impact on the aquifer and surrounding users.  
 
The applicant's additional information states that the Wanapum Aquifer may be connected to the 
Yakima River.  The Planning Department has received comments from others that the Wanapum 
Aquifer is connected to the Yakima River.  Considerable information can be found in the record that 
the applicant's proposed withdraw from the Aquifer would impact surrounding users of the 
groundwater.  Based on the comments received, more information is needed in order for the County 
to make an informed decision on the impacts the proposal will have on groundwater. 
 
Based on the above information and the information found in the record (Exhibit A), the Benton 
County Planning Manager made an Environmental Determination of Significance for the proposed 
4,000 head feedlot.  The Planning Manager determined that an EIS was required because the 
proposal would have a significant adverse impact on the environment.  
 
The Planning Manager identified the areas for discussion in the EIS: Surface Water 
Movement/quantity/quality/runoff/absorption; Groundwater Movement/quality/quality; impact on 
the aquifer; transportation system, vehicle traffic; odor, air quality and other issues identified 
through scoping process. 
 
The Board of County Commissioners per Chapter 43.21C RCW and Chapter 197-11 WAC has the 
power to affirm the Determination of Significance, to remand the determination back to the 
responsible official for further consideration, or to revise the threshold determination, provided its 
revision is in compliance with policies and provisions of Chapter 43.21C RCW and Chapter 197-11 
WAC.  
 
In accordance with WAC 197-11-680, the procedural determination made by the Planning Manager 
shall be entitled to substantial weight.  
 
The Benton County Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 3, Plan Goals, and Policies, GOAL 58 is to: “Secure 
long-term sustainable water supplies and apply effective stewardship of them.”  
 



Findings of Fact and Hearing Decision 
Page 5 
 
Policies I and J under Goal 58 state: “GROUND WATER POLICY (I) Benton County supports ground 
water management strategies that permit the responsible development of ground water resources, 
while protecting the long-term sustainability of aquifers.  (J) Benton County supports selective 
continued issuance of new water rights from groundwater sources. It is the County’s belief that 
areas and related aquifers exist where new water rights will not create impairments to existing 
rights or significantly affect aquifer levels. New water rights applications in these areas should be 
accepted and processed by Washington State Department of Ecology.” 
 
Testimony was provided by the Department of Natural Resources that adjacent wells are being 
monitored and have shown a decline of 2 to 5 feet per year from existing uses.  The applicant’s 
study provided that their well would contribute up to an additional 1 foot decline per year to the 
DNR’s well level.   
 
The Board finds that water level data from the Department of Ecology and the US Geological 
Survey’s Yakima Basin Study both document groundwater declines in the Wanapum Aquifer in the 
area.  Ecology’s measurements in the DNR well show about 70 feet of decline in the water levels 
since the well was drilled in 1978, or an average of 2 feet per year.  Similar declines in other wells 
were presented to the Board by surrounding property owners.   
 
Based on the testimony presented, the Board of County Commissioners believes that the Driscoll’s 
well will add a one foot drawdown in the aquifer which would be a 50% increase to the decline of 
the aquifer and would significantly affect the long-term water supply to surrounding wells.  The 
Board finds that additional information is needed to address concerns regarding long term impacts 
to the Wanapum aquifer and that the completion of a hydrological study as part of an EIS, would 
provide the information needed to determine the long term impact on this project on the aquifer and 
surrounding uses and movement of groundwater. 
 
Testimony from the applicant indicated that a manure management plan would be developed, while 
testimony from Mr. John Hamilton in opposition of the appeal indicated that over application of 
animal manure to the land could degrade soil quality and impact ground water quality and submitted 
Exhibit U consisting of various documents into the record. 
 
The Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the record provided by the Planning Department 
along with testimony, both written and verbal, presented at the Open Record Appeal Hearing. 
 
The record before the Board on the Driscoll proposal supports the determination of significance.  
Nothing in RCW 90.44.050, or case law regarding stockwatering wells, absolves Benton County from 
its responsibility to consider whether the Driscoll project has probable significant environmental 
impacts under SEPA.  The purpose of an EIS for the Driscoll’s project is to assess the project’s 
impacts and assess mitigation measures and alternatives in an environmental impact statement. 
 
According to the SEPA regulations, a DS must be issued and an EIS required in those instances 
where the County reasonably believes that a proposal may have a significant adverse impact.  The 
test for whether an EIS is required does not lend itself to a formula or quantifiable test.  The 
Washington State Supreme Court has articulated that an agency shall issue a DS and require an EIS 
whenever more than a moderate effect on the quality of the environment is a reasonable probability 
of the impacts of a project. 
 
The purpose of SEPA is to ensure that potential impacts to the environmental are identified and 



Findings of Fact and Hearing Decision 
Page 6 
 
understood prior to agency decision making.  SEPA does not demand or dictate particular outcomes 
with respect to ultimate decisions on projects, including the Board of Adjustment’s decision to grant 
or deny the Driscoll’s conditional use permit.   
 
The Board has considered the process and criteria presented in WAC 197-11-330 and WAC 197-11-
335 for making a Determination of Significance.  
 
Significance involves context and intensity and does not lend itself to a formula or quantifiable test.  
The severity of an impact should be weighed along with the likelihood of its occurrence.  An impact 
may be significant if its chance of occurrence is not great, but resulting environmental impact would 
be severe if it occurred.  
 
This project involves unique and unknown risk to the environment and may affect public health. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
adopts these findings and conclusions as their own with respect to the Appeal of File No. EA 12-14, 
and the appeal is hereby denied and the Planning Manager’s Determination of Significance requiring 
that an Environmental Impact Statement be prepared is upheld.  
 
 
 
             

Shon Small, Chairman 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 



 CCM 1.1 

AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: March 26, 2013 

SUBJECT:  2012 Red Mountain AVA 
Master Site Plan  
MEMO DATE: March 19, 2013 

Prepared By: Susan M. Walker 
Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 

NEEDED 

Execute Contract  
Pass Resolution X 

Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion  X 
Other    

 
Consent Agenda  
Public Hearing X 

1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other                    

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Washington State planning law allows comprehensive plan amendments to be considered 
more frequently than once a year for the initial adoption of sub area plans pursuant to RCW 
36.70A.130(2)(a)(i).  Benton County Comprehensive Plan Amendment 13-02, the 2012 Red 
Mountain AVA Master Site Plan (RM MSP) is a sub area plan presenting the framework and 
process for managing future development within the Red Mountain AVA area so that new 
development will advance the preferred vision while protecting the unique qualities of Red 
Mountain. The RM MSP as proposed will be adopted by reference within the County’s 
Comprehensive Plan and provides a vision, guiding principles, maps and descriptive text, 
recommendations, and strategies to achieve the desired goals.  The 2012 RM MSP 
document is the result of staff review and revisions for consistency with the Growth 
Management Act, the County’s Comprehensive Plan and the Benton County Code.  
 
The Planning Commission held its hearing regarding Comprehensive Plan Amendment 13-02 
on February 12th, 2013, and after discussion and consideration voted to recommend 
approval of the proposal with staff recommended revisions shown in CCM 1.2 & CCM 1.3, to the 
Board of County Commissioners.   The Planning Commission’s audio recording and findings of 
fact for the proposal, Exhibit PCH 1.4 & PCH 1.5, are attached.  A hearing has been scheduled 
for March 26th, 2013, at 9:00 am in the Commissioners Hearing Room in Prosser to take 
final action on the proposal. 
 
STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment 13-02 has been reviewed under the requirements of the 
State Environmental Policy Act, and a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) was issued 
on January 24, 2013. 
 

SUMMARY 

Benton County together with an alliance of vineyard and winery operators, land owners, local 
agencies and stakeholders, commissioned the Red Mountain AVA Master Site Plan planning 
process. The RM MSP area is located on the south-facing slope of Red Mountain within 
unincorporated Benton County bounded by the Yakima River terrace to the west, the 
ridgeline of Red Mountain on the north and the lowlands bordered by Interstate 82 on the 
south.  The boundary encompasses approximately 5,400 acres, of which 3,600 acres are 
designated Growth Management Act Agricultural (GMA AG) and protected under State law as 
agricultural lands of long term commercial significance.  The RM MSP is also home to the Red 
Mountain American Viticultural Area (AVA), a 4,600 acre federally designated grape-growing 
and wine-producing region.  The primary future uses within the RM MSP area are agricultural 

mf
Text Box
Red Mountain Master Site Plan ~ M Shuttleworth



 CCM 1.1 

uses and activities including vineyards and ag support facilities, associated wineries, and a 
Wine Village that will function as a visitor serving area and interpretive center providing 
educational and outdoor recreational experiences. The RM MSP contains locational criteria 
necessary to site the Wine Village through a Master Planned Resort designation, and 
guidance for future zoning and development regulations within the RM MSP area. 
 

STAFF REVIEW AND ANALYSIS   

The following sections of the Benton County Comprehensive Plan are proposed to be 
amended in CPA 13-02:  Chapter Four, The Land Use Element, will be amended to include 
text describing the 2012 Red Mountain AVA Master Site Plan as sub area plan and creating a 
nexus linking the plan to the Comprehensive Plan; and a RM MSP Map (Figure 1-1) showing 
site plan boundaries, AVA boundaries, existing vineyards and wineries, existing and 
proposed roads, and other anticipated infrastructure, will be added on Page 4-70.  These 
amendments as approved by the Planning Commission are shown in CCM 1.2. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is the recommendation of the Benton County Planning Commission and Planning Staff, that 
the Board of County Commissioners approves and adopt amendment proposal CPA 13-02. 
 
MOTION  
After consideration of the testimony received at the public hearing held March 26st 2013, the 
Board shall make a motion to adopt, modify, or deny the proposed CPA 13-02 and either 
adopt the Planning Commission’s Recommendation and Findings of Fact or develop their own 
findings of fact with reference to this matter and direct Planning staff to prepare a Resolution 
that reflects the Board’s decision and findings for the Boards signature. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
No fiscal impact is determined at this time, this is a non-project proposal. 



PCM 1.0 Staff Memo January 30, 2013

PCM 1 PCM 1.1 Draft Red Mountain Master Site Plan 2012 Dec 2007/Sept. 2012

PCM 1.2 Environmental Checklist EA 12-23 October 4, 2012

PCM 1.3 Determination of Non Significance January 24, 2013

PCM 1.4 Notice of Public Hearing January 24, 2013

PCM 1.5 Comments received from the Benton County Fire Marshal January 29, 2013
Planning Commission Hearing Exhibit List - February 12, 2013

PCH 1 PCH 1.1 Staff proposed text amendments to pages 4 & 5 - 1/31/13 February 12, 2013

PCH 1.2 Comments received from Jim Holmes February 1, 2013

PCH 1.3 Comments received from Benton Co. Public Works Dept. February 1, 2013

PCH 1.4 Comments received from Wash. St. Dept. of Transportation February 7, 2013

CCM 1 CCM 1.1 Board of County Commissioners Agenda Sheet March 19, 2013
Includes: CCM 1.2 Planning Commission Approved Changes to the Comp Plan February 12, 2013

CCM 1.3

Planning Commission Approved Changes to the Red Mtn. 

Master Site Plan document February 12, 2013

CCM 1.4

Planning Commission Recommendation, Findings & 

Conclusion March 12, 2013
CCM 1.5 Audio Recording of the Planning Commission Hearing February 12, 2013
CCM 1.6 Comments from Gerald Stanton February 12, 2013

CCH 1 CCH 1.1

Includes: CCH 1.2
CCH 1.3

PCM = Planning Commission Memo Exhibits
PCH = Exhibits submitted during Hearing
CCM = County Commissioner Memo Exhibits
CCH = Exhibits submitted during Hearing

The Exhibit Numbers are found in the 

Top Right Hand Corner of each document.

Board of County Commissioners Exhibit List  

EXHIBIT LIST FOR CPA 13-02

Red Mtn. Master Site Plan

Planning Commission Exhibit List - February 12, 2013

Board of County Commissioners Hearing Exhibit List 



AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date: March 26, 2012
Subject: Ordinance 525
Prepared by: Ryan Brown
Reviewed by:

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED

Execute Contract
Pass Resolution xx

Pass Ordinance
Pass Motion
Other

Consent Agenda
Public Hearing
1st Discussion

2nd Discussion

Other

xx

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
On February 26, 2013, you held a public hearing and passed resolution 2013-172 and ordinance 525. The
purpose of those acts was to repeal BCC 7.16.140, which prohibited the possession of a firearm at an
outdoor music festival as defined by our code.

The Tri-City Herald was requested topublish notice ofsuch hearing as required by law. However, after your
public hearing, Donna Hutchinson learned that, due to a mistake by the Herald, the notice was never
published.

No one appeared to testify atyour hearing on February 26th. In order to give the public an opportunity to
weigh in on this legislative decision and to comply with state law, you have scheduled another public hearing
for March 26th to re-consider your actions.

After the hearing, you may adopt a resolution to ratify your prior decision. Aresolution todo that has been
submitted to you.

Alternatively, you could decide to repeal ordinance no. 525 by adopting another ordinance. The effect of
such action would be to undo the repeal you adopted last month. If this is the Board's desire, we will
prepare a resolution and ordinance for the board to consider at its next regular meeting. Please keep in
mind the prior opinion by our office that the board does not have the authority to maintain the firearm
prohibition set forth in BCC 7.16.140.

SUMMARY: See above.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve a resolution ratifying the board's decision at the conclusion of its prior
public hearing on this matter.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

MOTION: Imove that we approve the resolution before us to ratify resolution 2013-172 and ordinance no.
525.

mf
Text Box
Ordinance Amendment BCC 7.16.140, Outdoor Concerts ~ R Brown



RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON

IN THE MATTER OF RATIFYING THE APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2013-172 AND THE
ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 525 RELATING TO THE REPEAL OF THE PROHIBITION
OF FIREARMS AT OUTDOOR MUSICAL FESTIVALS

WHEREAS, on February 26, 2013, the Board of County Commissioners held a public hearing
and then approved Resolution 2013-172 and adopted Ordinance No. 525;

WHEREAS, at the time of the hearing it was the understanding of the Board that a
notice of the hearing had been published in the Tri-City Herald;

WHEREAS, the Board subsequently learned that the Tri-City Herald was requested to
publish said notice but had inadvertently failed to do so;

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners therefore conducted another public hearing on
Tuesday, March 26, 2013, at 9:00 a.m. in the Commissioner's Meeting Room, Third
Floor of the Courthouse, Prosser, Washington, to consider any additional public input
regarding the repeal of BCC 7.16.140;

WHEREAS, notice of said hearing was published in the Tri-City Herald on March 14,
2013;

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners continues to be satisfied that it is in
the bests interests of the public to repeal BCC 7.16.140; NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Board hereby ratifies the approval of Resolution
2013-172 and the adoption of Ordinance No. 525 and the repeal of BCC 7.16.140.

Dated this 26th day of March, 2013.

Attest..

Clerk of the Board

Orig: Civil
cc: R. Brown; D. Sparks

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of Commissioners
of Benton County, Washington

R. Brown



mf
Text Box
Interlocal Agreement Update on Aging and Long Term Care ~ L Brown



mf
Text Box
Department of Energy Law Enforcement Contract ~ Captain Vannoy











 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
Meeting Date: 3/26/2013 
Subject:  Service Agreement  
Prepared by: T. Chalk 
Reviewed by:      S. Brown 
        

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract             
Pass Resolution  X          
Pass Ordinance              
Pass Motion              
Other            

 
 
Consent Agenda       
Public Hearing              
1st Discussion  X           
2nd Discussion              
Other              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Benton County Building Department has been using the Munis Software Permit Management System 
since 12/1/06. The software program is not web based, has very limited ability to create forms, update and 
store information, and process permit payments. The fees are still calculated and imputed manually in   
conflict with State Auditor requirements. The maintenance contract with Munis was terminated January of 
2010, and has been maintained by the Central Services Department ever since. The iWorQ Permit 
Management System corrects these deficiencies and allows us to evolve with changing technologies. 
Included in this permit management application are planning management, code enforcement, and an 
online permitting/contractor portal module. In addition the Planning Department has reviewed the iWorQ 
Planning Management System included with the Permit Management System. They have concluded the 
proposed System would better meet their requirements, than the current Munis Software System they are 
using.  
 
SUMMARY 
 
Same as above 
 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve Resolution 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
One time provisioning and training cost of $7,917.00 and an annual recurring cost of $5,917.00. 

mf
Text Box
Building Department Permit Management System Contract ~ S Brown



 

 

  
    

 

RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING iWorQ SYSTEMS A SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR 
BENTON COUNTY BUILDING DEPARTMENT PERMIT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM. 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Building Department is committed to identifying 
efficiencies and innovations to address reduced financial resources; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Building Department recognizes that permitting and support services 
are expected to grow, requiring increased productivity gains through technology, as well 
as the adoption of other innovative solutions to meet demand; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Building Department realizes the need for an increase use of self-
service information technology to allow the Building Department staff to more personally 
add value and serve the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Building Department is committed to streamlining our permitting 
processes in order to decrease costs and improve services through expanding our 
information technology resources to offer flexible, user-friendly, and integrated systems; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a significant amount of time and resources are currently allocated to  
creating, updating, inputting and printing with the current Munis Software System; and 
 
WHEREAS, automation and electronic storage through the web helps decrease hard 
dollar costs associated with paper, printing, copying, storage and postage; and 
 
WHEREAS, no Central Services effort is required to build or support the system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Building Department researched and evaluated web based providers to 
help improve effectiveness, increase efficiencies, and reduce the overall time and costs; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the analysis of online Permit Management System providers, the 
Building Department Manager recommends entering into a Service Agreement with 
iWorQ’s  Systems; NOW, THEREFORE  

 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington, the Board concurs with the Building Department Managers 
recommendation and hereby awards the Service Agreement to iWorQ Systems in the 
amount of  $7,917.00 broken down as follows: a one time set up cost of $2,000.00 plus 
an annual recurring cost of $5,917.00; and  
 
 
 



 

 

  
    

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners is authorized to sign the attached Service Agreement and Order Form; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached Service Agreement  agreement 
commences the date Service Agreement is signed  and can be cancelled at anytime 
providing iWorQ Systems 30 day notification.   
 
 
Dated this __________________ day of ________________, 2013. 
 
 
 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

 
 

________________________ 
Member 

 
 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

cc: Building Dept., Auditor, File      Prepared by: S. Brown 





46

R
et

u
rn

 t
o

 T
O

C

R
E

E
T

48
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

48
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

F
A

IR
G

R
O

U
N

D
S

 O
&

M
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

T
O

T
A

L
48

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
48

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 /
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

  F
E

E
S

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
/S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 C
O

S
T

S
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

O
T

H
E

R
 (

F
F

E
, L

A
N

D
, C

O
N

T
IN

G
E

N
C

Y
, E

T
C

.)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
O

T
A

L
48

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
48

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
h

e
m

ai
n

re
st

ro
o

m
is

in
d

es
p

er
at

e
n

ee
d

o
f

a
re

n
o

v
at

io
n

.
T

h
e

p
lu

m
b

in
g

is
an

ti
q

u
at

ed
,

th
e

el
ec

tr
ic

al
n

ee
d

s
to

b
e

b
ro

u
g

h
t

u
p

to
cu

rr
en

t
st

an
d

ar
d

s
an

d
th

e
H

V
A

C
is

n
o

n

ex
is

te
n

t.
T

h
e

re
st

ro
o

m
cu

rr
en

tl
y

ac
co

m
m

o
d

at
es

tw
en

ty
tw

o
p

eo
p

le
at

a
ti

m
e.

W
it

h
28

,0
00

p
eo

p
le

a
d

ay
at

te
n

d
in

g
th

e
fa

ir
al

o
n

e
th

e
cu

rr
en

t
re

st
ro

o
m

s
d

o
n

o
t

k
ee

p
u

p
w

it
h

th
e 

d
em

an
d

.  
D

u
e 

to
 i

ts
 s

iz
e 

an
d

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 a
 n

ew
 f

ac
il

it
y

 w
o

u
ld

 b
es

t 
fi

t 
th

e 
co

u
n

ty
's

 n
ee

d
.  

H
is

to
ry

 a
n

d
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
S

ta
tu

s

T
h

e
m

ai
n

re
st

ro
o

m
h

as
b

ee
n

in
se

rv
ic

e
fo

r
se

v
er

al
y

ea
rs

an
d

h
as

se
rv

ed
it

s
p

u
rp

o
se

.
W

it
h

th
e

14
0,

00
0

p
lu

s
p

eo
p

le
at

te
n

d
in

g
v

ar
io

u
s

ev
en

ts
at

th
e

fa
ir

g
ro

u
n

d
s

th
e

fa
ci

li
ty

is

n
o

lo
n

g
er

ad
eq

u
at

e.
T

h
e

p
lu

m
b

in
g

an
d

el
ec

tr
ic

al
n

ee
d

to
b

ro
u

g
h

t
u

p
to

cu
rr

en
t

st
an

d
ar

d
s.

T
h

e
h

ea
ti

n
g

an
d

ex
h

au
st

fa
n

s
al

so
n

ee
d

to
b

e
im

p
ro

v
ed

.
A

ll
p

ar
ti

ti
o

n
s

ar
e

ei
th

er

w
o

o
d

 o
r 

co
rr

u
g

at
ed

 m
et

al
 a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o

t 
m

ee
t 

cu
rr

en
t 

co
d

es
.  

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 I
m

p
a

ct

H
av

in
g

a
n

ew
re

st
ro

o
m

co
n

st
ru

ct
ed

th
e

m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
im

p
ac

t
w

o
u

ld
b

e
v

er
y

lo
w

fo
r

th
e

fi
rs

t
fi

v
e

y
ea

rs
.

B
y

h
av

in
g

m
o

d
er

n
ef

fi
ci

en
t

p
lu

m
b

in
g

an
d

el
ec

tr
ic

al
fi

x
tu

re
s

in
st

al
le

d
th

e
o

p
er

at
in

g
co

st
s

w
o

u
ld

b
e

lo
w

er
fo

r
th

e
fa

ir
g

ro
u

n
d

s
o

v
er

al
l.

T
h

e
fa

ci
li

ty
w

o
u

ld
b

e
cl

ea
n

ed
d

ai
ly

b
y

a
B

en
to

n
C

o
u

n
ty

In
m

at
e

W
o

rk
C

re
w

th
at

is
cu

rr
en

tl
y

as
si

g
n

ed
 t

o
 t

h
e 

fa
ir

g
ro

u
n

d
s.

N
e

w
 M

a
in

 R
e

st
ro

o
m

F
a

ir
g

ro
u

n
d

s:
  

1
5

0
0

 S
. 

O
a

k
 S

tr
e
e

t,
 K

e
n

n
e

w
ic

k
, 

W
A

 9
9

3
3

7

D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 S

co
p

e

T
h

e
p

ro
je

ct
co

n
si

st
s

o
f

b
u

il
d

in
g

a
n

ew
m

ai
n

re
st

ro
o

m
in

p
la

ce
o

f
th

e
cu

rr
en

t
fa

ci
li

ty
.

T
h

e
re

st
ro

o
m

w
o

u
ld

b
e

b
u

il
t

ad
ja

ce
n

t
to

th
e

cu
rr

en
t

o
p

en
ai

r
"g

ra
n

g
e"

b
u

il
d

in
g

.
B

y

re
lo

ca
ti

n
g

th
e

re
st

ro
o

m
it

w
o

u
ld

al
lo

w
th

e
cu

rr
en

t
o

n
e

to
re

m
ai

n
o

p
en

d
u

ri
n

g
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

.
T

h
e

n
ew

re
st

ro
o

m
w

o
u

ld
b

e
d

o
u

b
le

th
e

ca
p

ac
it

y
o

f
th

e
o

ld
o

n
e

in
o

rd
er

to

ac
co

m
m

o
d

at
e 

th
e 

10
0,

00
0 

p
at

ro
n

s 
v

is
it

in
g

 t
h

e 
fa

ir
 a

n
n

u
al

ly
. T

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

re
st

ro
o

m
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e 
re

p
u

rp
o

se
d

 o
r 

d
em

o
li

sh
ed

. 

P
u

rp
o

se
 a

n
d

 N
e

e
d

P
A

R
T

IC
IP

A
T

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

S

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 

C
O

S
T

S

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S

2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
4

2
0
1

5
-2

0
1

6
2

0
1

7
-2

0
1
8

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 B
U

D
G

E
T

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 

R
E

V
E

N
U

E

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
4

2
0
1

5
-2

0
1

6
2

0
1

7
-2

0
1
8

mf
Text Box
Fairgrounds Restroom Discussion ~ D. Docken



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  3/26/2013 
Subject:   Tax Title 
Prepared by:  K. Mercer  
Reviewed by:  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____ 
Pass Ordinance  _____ 
Pass Motion  __X__ 
Other   _____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda            _____ 
Public Hearing            _____ 
1st Discussion            __X__ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
Below is a summary report on the parcel 1-1389-305-0005-000. 

1. Assessed Value: $1,910     

2. Fair Market Value Appraisal:  No Fair Market Value Obtained 

3. Parcel Size: 0.532 Acres  

4. Area: Kennewick (East of Olympia & 36th Ave) see attached map 

5. Date Acquired:  11-28-12 (property didn’t sale at the foreclosure public auction) 

6. Unpaid Taxes: $1,358.92 (property taxes and assessments (no irrigation assessment)) 

7. Price Paid by County:  Zero - Property didn’t sale at the foreclosure public auction (Tax Title) 

8. Legal: Section 13 Township 8 Range 29 Quarter SW Plat Willow Crest Tract A, 10/25/2001, 
AF#01-033346 Irrigation Pond (per plat this tract is restricted to the use of irrigation facilities)  

9. Zoning: City Utility 

10. Marketing Plan: Sale to Kennewick Irrigation District (KID) through private negotiation.  

SALE OR LEASE METHODS 

If the Board orders the sale of any tax title personal property, it shall direct that the property be sold by 
one of the following methods: 

1. Public Auction.  County personal property may be sold at public auction to the highest and best 
bidder. The auction shall be conducted by or through the county treasurer or such other person as 
the board or treasurer may designate.  The treasurer may contract with another government agency 
or official, or with a private party, to conduct the auction.  Advance written notice of the sale shall 
be provided by publication, posting, and/or such other means as the treasurer or his or her 
designate deems appropriate.  The board shall set a minimum bid. 

2. Private Negotiation.  Pursuant to RCW 36.35.150, tax-title property may be disposed of by 
private negotiation and for not less than the principal amount of unpaid taxes and assessments in 
any of the following cases:  

1. When the sale is to any governmental agency and for public purposes; 

mf
Text Box
Tax Title Property Discussion ~ K Mercer



2. When the county legislative authority determines that it is not practical to build on the 
property due to the physical characteristics of the property or legal restrictions on 
construction activities on the property; 

3. When the property has an assessed value of less than five hundred dollars and the property 
is sold to an adjoining landowner; 

4. When no acceptable bids were received at the attempted public auction of the property, if 
the sale is made within twelve months from the date of the attempted public auction. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Authorize the sale method for tax title parcel # 1-1389-305-0005-000 be private negotiation and that the 
Property Manager bring back an offer to the Board at a later date. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
N/A  
 
MOTION 
 
Move that sale method for tax title parcel # 1-1389-305-0005-000 be private negotiation and that the 
Property Manager bring back an offer to the Board at a later date. 
 



 

 


	CA - Auditor a
	CA - Central Services b
	CA - Commissioners c
	CA - Commissioners d
	CA - Facilities e
	CA - Horticultural f
	CA - Horticultural g
	CA - Horticultural h
	CA - Human Services i
	CA - Human Services j
	CA - Juvenile k
	CA - OPD l
	CA - Parks m
	Contract Resolution.pdf
	IN THE MATTER OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND DAYCO, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF A WOOD STOVE FOR THE PARK RANGERS RESIDENCE LOCATED AT HORN RAPIDS PARK
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County


	Contract Resolution.pdf
	IN THE MATTER OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND DAYCO, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF A WOOD STOVE FOR THE PARK RANGERS RESIDENCE LOCATED AT HORN RAPIDS PARK
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County



	CA - Personnel n
	Certificate.pdf
	April2013
	Commissioner Jim Beaver
	Valerie Smith
	Benton county employee of the month
	Commissioner Jerome Delvin
	Commissioner Shon Small

	AGENDA.Employee of the Month.pdf
	SUMMARY
	FISCAL IMPACT



	CA - Personnel o
	CA - Personnel p
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	aa.pdf
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County


	aa.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY


	CA - Personnel q
	SUMMARY
	FISCAL IMPACT

	a.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	A.pdf
	Form
	Resolution


	CA - Public Works r
	CA - Public Works s
	CA - Public Works t
	CA - Public Works u
	CA - Public Works v
	CA - Public Works w
	CA - Sheriff x
	CA - Sheriff y
	CA - Sheriff z
	CA - Sheriff aa
	CA - Sheriff bb
	CA - Sheriff cc
	CA - Sheriff dd
	PH - Environmental Appeal
	PH - Red Mt
	PH - Ordinance Amendment to BCC 716140
	Timed - Aging & Long Term Care
	Timed - DOE Law Enforcement Contract
	Timed - Building Permit Management System
	Timed - Fairgrounds Restroom
	Restroom discussion
	Benton Co Fairgrounds Feasibility FINAL 8 29 12.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21


	Timed - Tax Title Property
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY

	Timed - Fairgrounds Restroom.pdf
	Restroom discussion
	Benton Co Fairgrounds Feasibility FINAL 8 29 12.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21


	Agenda Minutes 031913.pdf
	Approval of Minutes
	Unscheduled Visitors
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	Vouchers





